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BEFORE THE PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION 
OF THE STATE OF MISSOURI 

 
 
Director of the Manufactured Housing and )  
Modular Units Program of the Public  ) 
Service Commission,    ) 
      ) 
   Complainant,  ) 
      ) 
vs.      )  Case No. MC-2010-______   
      )   
5 Star Homes and Development                     ) 
Company, Inc.                           )  
      )    
   Respondent.  ) 
 
 
 

COMPLAINT 
  

 
 COMES NOW the Director of the Manufactured Housing and Modular Units Program 

of the Missouri Public Service Commission (“Director” and  “Department”), by and through the 

Missouri Public Service Commission’s (“Commission”) Office of Staff Counsel, pursuant to 

Section 700.100, RSMo 20001. and for his Complaint against 5 Star Homes and Development 

Company, Inc. (“5 Star”) states as follows: 

AUTHORITY AND GENERAL ALLEGATIONS 

1. The Commission has jurisdiction over manufactured homes, modular unit homes 

and modular unit home dealers pursuant to Chapter 700. 

2. Commission Rule 4 CSR 240-123.020, the Commission delegated to the Director 

all of its powers pertaining to modular units under Chapter 700 RSMo, except the powers to 

                                                 
1 All references to the Revised Statutes of Missouri will be to RSMo 2000, as currently supplemented. 
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revoke, deny, refuse to renew or place on probation a registration under Section 700.090,  

which are retained by the Commission. 

3. 5 Star is a modular unit dealer as defined in Section 700 .010(4). 

4. In January 2010, the Director did not complete processing of 5 Star’s renewal 

application and a 2010 Certificate of Dealer Registration did not issue because 5 Star had 

submitted a deficient application in that: 

(a)  5 Star has not paid its $200 re-inspection fee of the Grady Home as 

required under 4 CSR 240-123.095; and 

(b) 5 Star does not appear to be operating out of the place of business listed on 

its renewal application (69 Schaper Road, Foristell, Missouri, 63348),  

a violation of Section 700.090.3(1)(b)(See attached Exhibit 1); and, 

(c) 5 Star has not informed the Director of a change in place of business and 

is unable to be contacted by the Director.  (Section 700.090.3(1)(b) 

5. 5 Star has not cured the deficiencies in its renewal application. 

6. 5 Star’s failure to pay the Grady Home inspection fee constitutes grounds for the 

denial, suspension, revocation, or placing on probation of a dealer’s certificate of registration 

under 4 CSR 240-123.095(11). 

7. A dealer that fails to correct a code violation2 in a new modular unit home within 

a reasonable period of time not to exceed ninety (90) days after being ordered to do so in writing 

by the Director has engaged in conduct that is defined as a misdemeanor in Section 700.045(5). 

8. Any dealer that engages in conduct that is in violation of Section 700.045 is 

subject to having its license not renewed, revoked, suspended, or placed on probation by the 

Commission pursuant to Section 700.100.3(9). 

                                                 
2 The “code” is defined by rule 4 CSR 240-120.100 as the federal standards found at 24 CFR Part 3280 and the 
manufacturer’s installation instructions. 
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9. Any dealer that fails to arrange for the proper initial setup of a new modular unit 

home is subject to having its registration not renewed, revoked, suspended, or placed on 

probation by the Commission pursuant to Section 700.100.3(6). 

SPECIFIC FACTS IN SUPPORT OF ALLEGATIONS 

The Grady Home 

10. The Director re-alleges and incorporates herein the allegations contained in 

paragraphs 1 – 9. 

11. The Director sent  a letter to 5 Star dated December 1, 2009, with a copy of the 

original inspection report of November 24, 2009 on the new modular home purchased by  

Jeff and Ann Grady (the “Grady Home”) located at 25453 Maywood Road, Versailles, Missouri. 

(Exhibit 2) 

12. The November 24, 2009 inspection report revealed several code violations and 

directed 5 Star to make certain repairs to correct installation deficiencies. (Exhibit 2, Schedule 1) 

13. 5 Star failed to make repairs to the Grady Home. 

14. The Director sent 5 Star a second letter and second inspection report of the  

Grady home dated January 8, 2010. (Exhibit 3) 

15. 5 Star failed to make repairs to the Grady Home. (Exhibit 3, Schedule 1) 

16. The Director sent a third and final letter to 5 Star dated March 11, 2010.  

(Exhibit 4) 

17. 5 Star again failed to make the necessary repairs to the Grady Home.  

(Exhibit 4, Schedule 1) 

18. 5 Star’s failure to correct the deficiencies to the Grady Home is a violation of 

Section 700.100. 
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Three Homes Sold and Not Delivered to Buyers Gordon, White, and Mugler 

19. The Director re-alleges and incorporates herein the allegations contained in 

paragraphs 1 – 9. 

20. On November 3, 2009, the Director sent a letter to 5 Star with a copy of three (3) 

consumer complaints submitted to the Director against 5 Star for failing to deliver the homes 

sold to buyers (Exhibit 5): 

a) Timothy Gordon (the “Gordon Home”) of 2842 Foxwood Drive,  

Maryland Heights, Missouri (Exhibit 5, Schedule 1); 

b) Kenneth White (the “White Home”) of 175 Criderville, O’Fallon, 

Missouri (Exhibit 5, Schedule 2); and, 

c) Michelle and Hans Mugler (the “Mugler Home”) of 131 College Avenue, 

Kirkwood, Missouri (Exhibit 5, Schedule 3). 

21. The Director sent a follow up letter dated March 11, 2010 to 5 Star directing the 

dealer to deliver and install the Gordon, White, and Mugler homes. 

22. 5 Star has not delivered the homes to their buyers.   

23. 5 Star’s failure to deliver and install the Gordon, White, and Mugler  

homes constitute three (3) separate violations of Section 700.100 as described below in  

Counts 2, 3, and 4. 

COUNT 1: Failure to Correct Code Violations of the Grady Home 

24. The Director re-alleges and incorporates herein the allegations contained in 

paragraphs 10 – 18. 

25. 5 Star has failed to correct the code violations of the Grady Home within a 

reasonable period of time after being ordered to do so by the Director and such failure is a 

violation of Section 700.045(5). 
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26. 5 Star’s failure to correct the Grady Home code violations constitutes grounds for 

the denial of 5 Star’s application for renewal of its dealer registration under  

Section 700.100.3(9). 

COUNT 2: Failure to Arrange for the Setup of the Gordon Home 

27. The Director re-alleges and incorporates herein the allegations and information 

contained in paragraphs 19 – 22. 

28. 5 Star has failed to arrange for the proper initial setup of the Gordon Home and 

such failure is a violation of Section 700.100.3(6). 

COUNT 3: Failure to Arrange for the Setup of the White Home 

29. The Director re-alleges and incorporates herein the allegations and information 

contained in paragraphs 19 – 22. 

30. 5 Star has failed to arrange for the proper initial setup of the White Home and 

such failure is a violation of Section 700.100.3(6). 

COUNT 4: Failure to Arrange for the Setup of the Mugler Home 

31. The Director re-alleges and incorporates herein the allegations and information 

contained in paragraphs 19 – 22. 

32. 5 Star has failed to arrange for the proper initial setup of the Mugler Home and 

such failure is a violation of Section 700.100.3(6). 

COUNT 5: Failure to Pay Re-Inspection Fee 

33. The Director re-alleges and incorporates herein the allegations and information 

contained in paragraphs 1 – 9. 

34. 5 Star has failed to pay the $200 re-inspection fee for the January 5, 2010 second 

inspection of the Grady Home and such failure to pay is a violation of 4 CSR 240-123.095(6). 
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35. 5 Star’s failure to pay the $200 re-inspection fee constitutes grounds for the denial 

of 5 Star’s application for renewal of its dealer registration under 4 CSR 240-123.095(11)(A) and 

Section 700.040. (Exhibit 6) 

RELIEF SOUGHT 

36. The Director re-alleges and incorporates herein the allegations and information 

contained in paragraphs 1 – 34. 

37. Formal non-renewal of 5 Star’s 2010 application for renewal of dealer registration 

is appropriate because 5 Star has (a) failed to provide a current place of business in violation of 

Section 700.090.3(1)(b); (b) failed to pay the $200 Grady Home re-inspection fee in violation of 

4 CSR 240-123.095(11); (c) failed to correct the code violations of the Grady Home within a 

reasonable period of time in violation of Section 700.045(5); and (d) failed to arrange for the 

delivery and initial setup of the three (3) homes purchased by Gordon, White, and Mugler in 

multiple violations of Section 700.100.3 (6). 

38. Based on the above allegations and Counts 1 through 5 against 5 Star, the 

Director requests the Commission authorize its General Counsel to seek penalties in Circuit 

Court.  Pursuant to Section 700.115.2, each day’s violation of Sections 700.100.3(6) and 

700.100.3(9) is a separate offense and renders 5 Star liable for a penalty of up to $1,000 for each 

offense.3 

SERVICE 

39. According to the current records on file with the Missouri Secretary of State’s 

Office, Mr. Jeff Kasten is the President and Registered Agent of 5 Star.  Because it appears  

that 5 Star is no longer operating from its principal place of business at 69 Schaper Road, 

Foristell, MO  63348, the Director will provide an additional service copy of this complaint to 
                                                 
3 Section 700.040(5) provides that “The Commission may issue and promulgate such rules and regulations as 
necessary to make effective the code and the provisions of sections 700.010 to 700.115.”  Any modular unit code or 
commission rule violations fall within the ambit of the civil penalty provisions of Section 700.115.2 RSMo. 
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Mr. Kasten at 45 Schaper Oaks Court, Foristell, Missouri 63348, which is the physical address 

he has listed in his roles as President and Registered Agent. 

WHEREFORE, the Director prays that the Commission provide notice to the 

Respondent of this complaint and, after hearing, affirm, authorize, and approve the Director’s 

actions and formally non-renew 5 Star’s application for renewal of dealer registration,  

and authorize the General Counsel to seek penalties in Circuit Court as enumerated in  

Counts 1 through 5 above, and issue other findings and orders as are just and reasonable. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
s/Robert S. Berlin   ___________________ 
Robert S. Berlin 
Senior General Counsel 
Missouri Bar No. 51709 
 
Attorney for the Director of the 
Manufactured Housing and Modular Units 
Program of the Missouri Public Service 
Commission 
P. O. Box 360 
Jefferson City, MO 65102 
(573) 526-7779 
(573) 751- 9285 (Fax) 

                                                                                    Email: bob.berlin@psc.mo.gov 

 
 

Certificate of Service 
 

I hereby certify that copies of the foregoing have been mailed or hand-delivered to the persons 
listed below on this 5th day of May 2010. 
 
       s/Robert S. Berlin___________________ 
 
 
 
 Office of Public Counsel 
             Lewis Mills 
   200 Madison Street, Suite 650 
             Jefferson City, MO  65102 
             opcservice@ded.mo.gov  






























